
For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  
711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 
 

AGENDA 
FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

Regular Meeting 
Circuit Courtroom 

Fluvanna Courts Building 
January 18th 2012 

7:00 p.m. 
 

 
  1-CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE, MOMENT OF SILENCE 

 
  2-REPORTS 

Darren K. Coffey, Interim County Administrator 
 

   3-PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 (5 minutes each) 
 

  4-CONSENT AGENDA 
TAB S  Minutes of January 4th, 2012 – Mary Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
 
    5-ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
  None 
 
   6-PUBLIC HEARING  
TAB T  SUP 11:05 – Central Virginia Electric Cooperative – A request for a special use permit to install electric  

facilities related to a major utility with respect to 62.8 acres of Tax Map 26, Section A, Parcels 
22, 23, and 24F. The applicant is proposing to construct, operate, and maintain electric 
transmission and substation facilities to serve the Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Company’s 
natural gas pump station. The property is currently zoned A-1 and I-1 and is located on Transco 
Road (Route 643), approximately 1/2 mile west of Rolling Road South (Route 620). The 
property is located in the Cunningham Election District and is within the Rural Preservation 
Planning Area – Mr. Steve Tugwell, Senior Planner 

 
TAB U  SUP 11:06 – Central States Tower, LLC – Construct Telecommunications Tower – A request for a  

special use permit to amend SUP 07:15 to allow for an increase in height from 125 feet to 195 
feet for a wireless communications tower with respect to 29.389 acres of Tax Map 52, Section 1, 
Parcel 7. The property is zoned A-1 and is located on Route 15 (7021 James Madison Highway), 
just north of the Route 15 and Route 6 (East River Road) intersection. The property is located in 
the Fork Union Election District and is within the Rural Residential Planning Area – Mr. 
Andrew Pompei, Planner 
    

   7-PRESENTATIONS (normally not to exceed 10-minute limitation) 
TAB V  PC’s Proposed Long Range Planning Projects for 2012 – Andrew Pompei, Planner 
TAB W  Radio Communications Narrow Banding Update – Mr. John Robins, Public Works Director 
   
   8-ACTION MATTERS 

 None 
 
  9-UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

TAB X  Code of Ethics – Darren K. Coffey, Interim County Administrator 
 

10-NEW BUSINESS 
TAB YZ  County Administrator Hiring Process – Darren K. Coffey, Interim County Administrator 
   

11-PUBLIC COMMENT #2 (5 minutes each) 
 



For the Hearing-Impaired – there is a listening device available at the Board of Supervisors Room upon request..  TTY access number is  
711  to make arrangements.   

For persons with Disabilities – if you have special needs, please call the County Administrator’s Office at 591-1910 and relay your request. 
 

 12-CLOSED MEETING 
Discuss Legal Matters - consultation with legal counsel regarding specific legal matters requiring the  

provision of legal advice by such counsel 
 
13-ADJOURN 
  
 
 

********** 
Pledge of Allegiance 

I pledge allegiance to the flag  
of the United States of America  

and to the Republic for which it stands,  
one nation, under God, indivisible, 

 with liberty and justice for all. 
********** 

 
ORDER 

 
1. It shall be the duty of the Chairman to maintain order and decorum at meetings.  The Chairman shall speak to points of order in 

preference to all other members. 
 
2. In maintaining decorum and propriety of conduct, the Chairman shall not be challenged and no debate shall be allowed until after 

the Chairman declares that order has been restored.  In the event the Board wishes to debate the matter of the disorder or the 
bringing of order; the regular business may be suspended by vote of the Board to discuss the matter. 

 
3. No member or citizen shall be allowed to use abusive language, excessive noise, or in any way incite persons to use such tactics.  

The Chairman and/or the County Administrator shall be the judge of such breaches, however, the Board may vote to overrule both. 
 
4.    When a person engages in such breaches, the Chairman shall order the person’s removal from the building, or may order the  
       person to stand silent, or may, if necessary, order the person removed from the County property. 



 
 
MOTION: I move the minutes of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors for 
Wednesday, January 4th, 2012 and retreat for January 6th, 2012 be adopted. 
 
 
AGENDA  BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DATE:  January 18th, 2012 
 
 
SUBJECT: Adoption of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors regular meeting 
minutes. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Approval 
 
TIMING: Routine 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATIONS:  None 
 
POLICY IMPLICATIONS:  None 
 
DISCUSSION:  None 
 
LEGISLATIVE HISTORY:  None 

 
 

Staff:  Mary L. Weaver, Clerk to the Board of Supervisors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
************************************** 
County Administrator’s Use Only 
Comments: 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Darren K. Coffey, Interim County Administrator 



Board of Supervisors 
Minutes, January 4th 2012 

Page 1 
 

 1 

FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Circuit Courtroom 
Fluvanna Courts Building 

January 4th 2012 
2:00 p.m. 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 
    Bob Ullenbruch,Vice-Chairman 

Joe Chesser 
Mozell H. Booker 

    Donald W. Weaver 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Darren K. Coffey, Interim County Administrator 
    Frederick W. Payne, County Attorney 
    Renee Hoover, Finance Director 
    Mary L. Weaver, Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
 
CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/MOMENT OF SILENCE 
Mr. Darren K. Coffey, Interim County Administrator, called the organizational meeting of 
January 4th 2012 to order at 2:00 p.m. in the Circuit Courtroom of the Courts Building in 
Palmyra, Virginia and the Pledge of Allegiance was recited after which, Mr. Coffey called for a 
moment of silence. 
 
2012 Organizational Meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
Election of Chairman and Vice Chairman  
Election of Chairman  
This action will elect a new Chairman to the Board of Supervisors. 
Mr. Darren K. Coffey, Interim County Administrator, opened the floor for nominations. 
Supervisor Ullenbruch nominated Supervisor Kenney for Chairman. 

VOTE COUNT:   Supervisor Kenney 5-0   AYES:  Chesser, Kenney,  
Weaver, Ullenbruch and Booker 

With the majority of AYES, Supervisor Kenney was elected Chairman. 
 

Election of Vice-Chairman  
This action will elect a new Vice-Chairman to the Board of Supervisors. 
Chairman Kenney opened the floor for nominations for Vice-Chairman. 
Supervisor Weaver nominated Supervisor Ullenbruch 
Supervisor Booker nominated Supervisor Chesser. 

VOTE COUNT:  Supervisor Chesser  2-3    AYES:  Chesser and Booker 
 Supervisor Ullenbruch 3-2    AYES:  Weaver, Kenney and  

Ullenbruch   
With the majority of AYES, Supervisor Ullenbruch was elected Vice-Chairman. 

 



Board of Supervisors 
Minutes, January 4th 2012 

Page 2 
 

 2 

Selection of Dates for the Board Meetings 
This action will adopt the Board of Supervisors 2012 regular Meeting Calendar as presented. 

MOTION: 
Mr. Weaver moved to adopt the Board of Supervisors 2012 regular Meeting 
Calendar as presented [which does not include any joint meetings or work 
sessions]. Mr. Ullenbruch seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  
AYES:  Chesser, Booker, Ullenbruch, Kenney and Weaver.   NAYS:  None.   
ABSENT: None. 
 

Resolution Entitled “Organizational Meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
2012” 
The Code of Virginia requires an annual organizational meeting of the Board of Supervisors for 
the election of officers and the conduct of such other business as to meeting times and dates. 

MOTION: 
Mr. Weaver moved to adopt the resolution [attached hereto] entitled 
“Organizational Meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 2012” 
which solidifies the meeting place and the day and time of the meetings. Mr. 
Ullenbruch seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Chesser, 
Booker, Ullenbruch, Kenney and Weaver.   NAYS:  None.   ABSENT: None. 
 

Adoption of Board By-Laws and Rules of Procedures 
This action will adopt the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors By-Laws & Rules of Practice 
& Procedures. 

MOTION: 
Mr. Weaver moved to adopt the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors By-Laws 
& Rules of Practice & Procedures as amended.  Mr. Chesser seconded.  The 
motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Chesser, Booker, Ullenbruch, Kenney 
and Weaver.   NAYS:  None.   ABSENT: None. 
 

Appointments/Boards & Commissions  
The following appointments were made: 

Booker and Kenney - Affordable Housing Task Force 
Weaver - Agricultural/Forestal Advisory Committee 
Weaver - Audit Committee 
Booker - Community Policy Management Team 
Ullenbruch - Court Green Committee 
Chesser - Economic Development Commission 
Kenney - Emergency Services Director 
Chesser - Fluvanna Transportation Safety Commission 
Booker - Fork Union Sanitary District Advisory Committee 
Weaver - Landfill Advisory Committee 
Ullenbruch and Booker - Palmyra Wastewater Committee 
Booker - Parks & Recreation Board 
Kenney - Piedmont Work Force Council 
Chesser - Planning Commission 
Chesser and Ullenbruch- Rivanna River Basin Commission 
Booker - Social Services Board 



Board of Supervisors 
Minutes, January 4th 2012 

Page 3 
 

 3 

Kenney - Thomas Jefferson Area Community Criminal Justice Board 
Ullenbruch– Thomas Jefferson Partnership for Economic Development 
Chesser - Thomas Jefferson Planning District Commission 
Kenney - Virginia Association of Counties Legislature Contact 

MOTION: 
Mr. Weaver moved to approve the designated names in each category as shown 
here in the Boards, Commissions and Committees.  Mrs. Booker seconded.  The 
motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Chesser, Ullenbruch, Booker, Kenney 
and Weaver.   NAYS:  None.   ABSENT: None. 
 

Board of Supervisors Regular Meeting 
Chairman Kenney proceeded with the regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors for 
Wednesday, January 4th 2012. 

  
REPORTS 
Mr. Darren K. Coffey, Interim County Administrator, reported on the following topics: 
  Estimating increase in VRS rates, state is lowering Constitutional Officers and employee 

costs, no pending change to the VRS employee share of 5%  to those hired after July 1, 
2011, less money from state for Communications Tax, decreasing funding for Electoral 
Boards localities can supplement. 

 Board of Supervisors retreat on Friday January 6, 2012 at the Water Street Conference 
Center in Charlottesville, from 8:00am to 4:00pm. 

 Speed study on Route 15 in Troy has been completed, advising posting of 40mph south 
bound, requesting same posting for north bound. 

 February 1st, 2012 Board of Supervisors meeting will be held in the Historic Courthouse. 
 Farmer’s Table, local foods festival, being organized by the extension office for August 

19th, 2012 at Pleasant Grove.  Free to the public. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS #1 
Chairman Kenney opened the floor for the first round of public comments. 
The following citizen addressed the Board: 
 Scott Lee, representative for Congressman Robert Hurt, of Albemarle - send greetings 

and congratulations to the Board and assistance whenever needed. 
With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Kenney closed the first round of public comments. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
The following items were approved under the consent agenda: 
 MOTION: 
  Mr. Weaver moved to approve the consent agenda which consisted of: 

 Minutes of December 21st, 2011 
 FY12 Budget Supplement for Library Telecommunication Reimbursement 

Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Chesser, 
Booker, Ullenbruch, Kenney and Weaver.   NAYS:  None.   ABSENT: None. 

 



Board of Supervisors 
Minutes, January 4th 2012 

Page 4 
 

 4 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
Renee Hoover, Finance Director, addressed the Board regarding the accounts payable. 

MOTION: 
Mr. Weaver moved the Accounts Payable from November 29 through December 
27, 2011 and Payroll for the month of November 2011 in the amount of 
$1,263,895.23 be ratified.   Mrs. Booker seconded.  The motion carried with a 
vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Chesser, Booker, Ullenbruch, Kenney and Weaver.   NAYS:  
None.   ABSENT: None. 
    
 General Fund                $    554,694.17 
 Community Programs                              .00 
 Federal Grants    17,850.00 

Capital Improvements                              16,769.09 
 Debt Service                  21,997.40 
 Sewer        5,743.88 
 Fork Union Sanitary District     5,830.81 
 
 Total Expenditures by Fund             $622,885.35 

Payroll - November                641,009.88 
Total Payables & Payroll         $    1,263,895.23 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
None 

 
PRESENTATIONS: 
None 
 
ACTION MATTERS 
None 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
The following items were discussed: 
 VDOT patched the holes in front of the Parks and Recreation building. 
 Mr. Weaver directed staff for a scale of the teachers’ salaries of the surrounding counties. 
 How much money is involved in the option 3 pick for the schools? 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
The following items were discussed: 
 Chairman Kenney appointed Mr. Ullenbruch and Mr. Chesser to the Budget 

subcommittee.   
 February 1st meeting will be the CIP and initial budget presentation.   
 Chairman Kenney directed staff to have the proposed budget to be presented to each 

district and receive public feedback. 
 Chairman Kenney appointed Mr. Ullenbruch and Mr. Chesser to the Fire and EMS 

committee. 
 The Board directed staff to compile a list of Revenue by departments for review by the 

Budget Committee. 
 The Board directed staff to research the possibility of combining the Finance Board and 

OPEB Board. 



Board of Supervisors 
Minutes, January 4th 2012 

Page 5 
 

 5 

 Address concerns made in public comments. 
 Purchase stylists for Board members to use with their iPads. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS #2 
Chairman Kenney opened the floor for the second round of public comments.   
With no one wishing to speak, Chairman Kenney closed the second segment of public 
comments. 

 
CLOSED MEETING 

MOTION TO ENTER INTO A CLOSED MEETING: 
At 2:45 p.m. Mr. Weaver moved the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors enter 
into a closed meeting pursuant to the provisions of Section 2.2-3711 of the Code 
of Virginia, 1950, as amended, for the purpose of discussing legal matters - 
pending litigation.  Mr. Ullenbruch seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 
5-0.  AYES:  Chesser, Booker, Ullenbruch, Kenney and Weaver.   NAYS:  None.   
ABSENT: None. 
 

MOTION TO EXIT A CLOSED MEETING & RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION: 
At 2:53 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved the closed meeting be adjourned and the 
Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors reconvene again in open session. Mrs. 
Booker seconded.  The motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Chesser, 
Booker, Ullenbruch, Kenney and Weaver.   NAYS:  None.   ABSENT: None. 
 

MOTION: 
At 2:54 p.m. the following resolution was adopted by the Fluvanna County Board 
of Supervisors following a closed meeting held Wednesday, January 4th 2012 on 
motion of Mr. Weaver seconded by Mrs. Booker and carried by the following 
vote:  AYES:  Chesser, Ullenbruch, Booker, Kenney and Weaver.   NAYS:  
None.   ABSENT:  None. 
 
“BE IT RESOLVED to the best of my knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully 
exempted from open meeting requirements under Section 2.2-3711-A of the Code of Virginia, 
1950, as amended, and (ii) only such public business matters as were identified in the motion by 
which the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting.” 
 

RECESS 
MOTION: 

At 2:55 p.m., Mr. Weaver moved to recess to the Board of Supervisors retreat on 
Friday, January 6th at the Water Street Conference.  Mrs. Booker seconded.  The 
motion carried with a vote of 5-0.  AYES:  Chesser, Booker, Ullenbruch, Kenney 
and Weaver.   NAYS:  None.   ABSENT: None. 
 



Board of Supervisors 
Minutes, January 4th 2012 

Page 6 
 

 6 

RECONVENE 
Chairman Kenney reconvened the meeting on Friday, January 6th, 2012 at the Water Street 
Conference Center for the Board of Supervisors Retreat.  Chairman Kenney turned the meeting 
over to Mr. Grant Tate, CEO, The Bridge, LTD, to facilitate the retreat.  The following topics 
were discussed: 
 Purpose of Meeting 
 Desired outcomes/goals of the meeting 
 Ground rules 
 Code of Ethics 
 External Factors 
 Needs and Priorities 
 Budget Process 

 
The Board directed staff to have departments rank their services from 1-5 in priority with 5 being 
the highest and 1 the lowest. 
 
The Board directed staff to work with the Budget Committee and project a 3 year budget along 
with 4 scenarios; 

 Meet State Mandates 
 Do Nothing (keep level) 
 Moderate Steady – State 
 Aggressive Steady – State 

The Board also wants an updated 5 year financial forecast on the scenario that is chosen. 
 
ADJOURN 

MOTION: 
At 2:34p.m. Mrs. Booker moved to adjourn the BOS Retreat of January 6th, 
2012.  Mr. Ullenbruch seconded. The motion carried with a vote of 5-0. 
AYES: Booker, Chesser, Ullenbruch, Kenney, and Weaver. NAYS: 
None. 

 
 
 
 
ATTEST:     FLUVANNA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
 
__________________                         _______________________ 
Mary L. Weaver, Clerk   Shaun V. Kenney, Chairman 



Board of Supervisors 
Minutes, January 4th 2012 

Page 7 
 

 7 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
County of Fluvanna 

Palmyra, Virginia 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 At a regular monthly meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors held on 
Wednesday, January 4th 2012, in Palmyra, Virginia, the following action was taken: 

 
Present Vote 
Mozell Booker        YEA 
Joe Chesser        YEA 
Bob Ullenbruch        YEA       
Shaun V. Kenney        YEA 

 Donald W. Weaver  YEA 

 
 On a motion by Mr. Weaver seconded by Mr. Ullenbruch and carried by a vote of 5-0 the 
following resolution was adopted: 
 

Organizational Meeting of the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 2012 
 
WHEREAS, the Code of Virginia requires an annual organizational meeting for the Board of 
Supervisors for the election of officers and the conduct of such other business as to meeting 
times and dates and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors does now conduct such an organizational meeting. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors that it does hereby 
designate the Circuit Courtroom in the Fluvanna Courts Building as its meeting place for regular 
meetings to be held on the first Wednesday of each month at 2:00 p.m. and the third 
Wednesday of each month at 7:00 p.m.  Except February 1st when the meeting will be held in 
the Historic Courthouse due to Court being in session, in the month of July when the first 
meeting will be held on Tuesday July 3rd due to the holiday, the month of August when the only 
meeting shall be on the first Wednesday starting at 2:00 p.m., breaking for dinner, then 
reconvening at 7:00 p.m. for public hearings and in the month of November when the second 
meeting will be held on Tuesday November 20th, due to the holiday. 
 
FURTHER BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors that it does hereby designate the 
fourth Wednesday at 7:00 p.m. as the meeting date for any such regular meeting that is 
postponed due to weather or such other circumstances. 
 
Adopted this 4th day of January 2012 
by the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
        
Darren K. Coffey, Interim County Administrator 



    

  

  

  

  

  

STAFF REPORT 
 

To: Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors               From: Steve Tugwell 
Case Number: SUP 11:05      District: Cunningham 
Tax Map: Tax Map 26, Section A, Parcels 22, 23, 24F             Date: January 18, 2012 
 
General Information: This request is to be heard by the Board of Supervisors on 

Wednesday, January 18, 2012 at 7:00 pm in the Circuit Courtroom 
in the New Courthouse.  The applicant or authorized representative 
is required to attend. 

 
Applicant/Owner:  Central Virginia Electric Cooperative 
 
 Representative:  Joseph Key 
 
Requested Action:  A request for a special use permit to install electric facilities related 

to a major utility with respect to 62.8 acres of Tax Map 26, Section 
A, Parcels 22, 23, and 24F.  The applicant is proposing to 
construct, operate, and maintain electric transmission facilities to 
serve the Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Company’s natural gas 
pump station. (Attachment A) 

 
Location: The affected property is located on Transco Road (Route 643), 
                                                 approximately ½ mile west of Rolling Road South (Route 620). 
                                                (Attachment B) 
                                                                                                                                     
Existing Zoning:  A-1 (Agricultural, General) and I-1 (Industrial, Limited) 
 
Existing Land Use:  Various buildings related to the existing gas line, office trailers 
                                                                               
Adjacent Land Use:   All adjacent properties are zoned A-1, (Agricultural, General)  
 
Comprehensive Plan:  This property is in the Rural Preservation Planning Area 
 
Zoning History:  A Special Use Permit (97:16) for a signal regeneration building for 
                                               a public utility fiber optics system was approved by the Board of 
                                               Supervisors on December 17, 1997; A Site Development Plan 
                                               (00:05) to expand an existing fiber facility was approved by the  
                                               Planning Commission on September 25, 2000. 
                                                
 

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA  
“Responsive & Responsible Government” 

  

P.O. Box 540 Palmyra, VA 22963 (434) 591-1910 FAX (434) 591-1911 www.co.fluvanna.va.us 

1



Comprehensive Plan 

 
           LAND USE 

The Rural Preservation paragraph of the Land Use section of the Comprehensive 
Plan states that Rural Preservation areas are intended to be the least developed 
with provisions made for protection of viewsheds from roadways and existing 
development.  Originating at Dominion Virginia Power’s transmission easement 
on Tax Map 26-A-24F, a one-hundred foot (100) wide easement is proposed for 
the purposes of facilitating transmission structures designated across two (2) 
parcels in order to connect transmission service to the pump station.  The 
applicant has stated that these structures will be “single-pole structures, and not 
the typical lattice tower or two-pole structures”.  The applicant has also stated 
that “the transmission easement will be adjacent to the pipeline easement to 
minimize impact to the land”.  Three (3) structures are proposed within the new 
easement.  The substation, which will be located on Transco property, will be 
screened with security fencing, and the applicant has further stated that “the visual 
impact will be mitigated to the extent possible with vegetation around three (3) 
sides of the fence exposed to adjoining property owners”, and that, “ornamental 
shrubs or ground covers will be planted, mulched, and fertilized in accordance 
with the grower’s specifications”.      
 

           ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Goal number three says to support the development of local economies, locally 
owned businesses, and entrepreneurial opportunities, particularly those that are of 
rural character and will require little provision of infrastructure.  Although this 
facility requires more infrastructure than most uses in the rural areas, it also 
provides local employment and contributes to the natural gas supply to the region.  
Upgrading this existing facility appears to be consistent with the entrepreneurial 
spirit of this goal for economic development in Fluvanna County. 
 

Analysis: 

 

When evaluating proposed uses for a special use permit, in addition to analyzing the potential 
adverse impacts of the use, staff utilizes two (2) general guidelines for evaluation as set forth in 
the zoning ordinance. 
 

First, the proposed use should not tend to change the character and established pattern of 

the area or community. 
The applicant is proposing to construct, operate, and maintain electric transmission and 
substation facilities to serve the Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Company’s natural gas pump 
station located at 1344 Transco Road in Scottsville, VA.  This activity will take place on a total 
area of 62.8 acres.  This type of use is considered a “major utility” as defined in the Fluvanna 
County Zoning Ordinance.  According to the ordinance, a major utility is defined as “facilities 
for the distribution, collection, treatment, production, transmission and generation of public, 
private and central utilities including, but not limited to, transmission lines, production plants, 
electrical substations, pumping stations, treatment facilities, and communication facilities”.   

2



    

Originating from an existing Dominion Virginia Power easement, a one-hundred (100) foot wide 
easement, approximately 1,200 feet in length is proposed to run across two (2) parcels to the 
Transco parcel in order to connect transmission service to the pump station.  The 100 foot 
easement will be provided by adjacent property owners through a private negotiation.  According 
to the application, the substation will include one (1) power transformer, existing structures, 
equipment, and control building, all located within a security fence.  The land facilitating all of 
the structures is owned by Transco, and the substation structures and equipment will be owned by 
Central Virginia Electric Cooperative.  This application is to upgrade and improve a major utility 
that is already in place, and the applicant is proposing to retain existing trees and vegetation, but 
also to increase landscaping and screening of the activity.  Therefore, the character and 
established pattern of the area will most likely improve with negligible to no negative visual 
impacts.  
 
Second, the proposed use should be compatible with the uses permitted by-right in that 

zoning district and shall not adversely affect the use/or value of neighboring property.  
 
The applicant has described the necessity for the upgrade at this facility in order to be able to 
provide an energy supply to serve a 33,000 horsepower pump and ancillary equipment, which 
will then in turn be able to serve a greater number of customers in the region.  This project is 
known as the “Mid-Atlantic Connector Expansion”, and it is anticipated that the expansion will 
increase natural gas transportation capacity to serve 600,000 homes in the region by November 
2012.  The project involves pipeline construction in Prince William and Fairfax Counties, as well 
as upgrading compressor facilities in Pittsylvania and Fluvanna Counties.  The applicant has 
stated in their application that the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission has granted approval 
to the project.  There are only a few dwellings within visual distance of this facility, and two of 
them are negotiating with the applicants to establish a utility easement through their property.  
(Attachment C) 
 

Neighborhood Meeting: 

 

At the November 9th, 2011 neighborhood meeting, there were four (4) people that spoke with 
regard to the facility.  The questions were regarding noise levels at the facility.  (Attachment D) 
 

Technical Review Committee: 

 

At the November 10th, 2011 Technical Review Committee meeting, VDOT had no comments 
with regard to this application, as there is an existing entrance to the site. 
  
No comments were provided by the Fire Department. 
  
No comments were provided by the Health Department.  (Attachment E) 
 
Planning Commission: 

 

The Planning Commission discussed this SUP request at their December 28, 2011 meeting.  Mr. 
Joseph Key addressed the Planning Commission with regard to his request to upgrade the 

3



existing facility with a new substation.  Condition #7 states “all noise generated by this activity 
shall be limited to a maximum daytime and nighttime level of 70dB at the property line”.  The 
Planning Commission discussed modifying condition #7 replacing “this activity” to “the 
electrical service facility””..    Both the County Attorney and the Planning Commission were of the 
consensus that this modification more adequately addresses the nature of the intended use..  The 
Planning Commission voted unanimously to recommend approval of SUP 11:05 with the 
modification to condition #7 by a vote of 5-0. 
 

Conclusion: 

 

While this special use permit application for a major utility appears to substantially meet the 
intent of the Comprehensive Plan, the Board should consider any potential adverse impacts, such 
as traffic, noise, and impacts to the rural atmosphere that this use could have on the area.  Staff is 
not aware of any existing adverse conditions associated with this facility.  
 

Recommended Conditions: 

 

If approved, staff recommends the following conditions:                                      
                                                         

1) Prior to development of the site, a site development plan that meets the requirements of 
the Fluvanna County Zoning Ordinance, must be submitted for review and approval; 

2) Meeting all VDOT and Health Department requirements. 
3) New buildings and structures shall be compatible with existing buildings, be earth tone in 

color, and be approved by planning staff prior to construction. 
4) Any lighting will not be directed toward adjacent properties and will be limited in nature. 
5) Outside storage of materials and machinery shall be screened from the public rights-of-

way with either architectural or vegetative screening as approved by the County; 
6) All screening shall be maintained in a condition acceptable to the County; 
7) All noise generated by this activity the electrical service facility shall be limited to 

maximum daytime and nighttime level of 70 dB at the property line.  
8) The 230 KV transmission line shall be no taller in height than the 74.6 feet that the 

application is proposing. 
9) The Board of Supervisors, or representative, reserves the right to inspect the business for 

compliance with these conditions at any time.   
 
The language in condition #7 has been modified for clarity per the Planning Commission. 

  
Suggested Motion: 
 
I move that the Board of Supervisors approve/deny SUP 11:05, a special use permit request to 
install electric facilities related to a major utility with respect to 62.8 acres of Tax Map 26, 
Section A, Parcels 22, 23, and 24F, subject to the conditions listed in the staff report (if 
approved).  
 

 

 

4



    

Attachments: 
 
A – Application, site sketch plan, and Applicant’s narrative 
B -  Aerial Vicinity Map 
C – Proposed site layout 
D – APO Letter and neighborhood meeting comments 
E –Health Department email, and email from VDOT 
 
Copy: 
Applicant – Central Virginia Electric Cooperative, 800 Cooperative Way, Arrington, VA 22922 
Representative – Mr. Joseph Key, 800 Cooperative Way, Arrington, VA 22922 
File 
 
  

5



ATTACHMENT A

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



23

24J
214-651

24H
214-651

24I
214-651

1

2

322
53-416

21

4

57-50

6
75-35

1

7
124-239

2

3

2B

2A

674-144

807-313

807-313

816-15

816-15

DB 1 
PG 10

0

24D

92-588

23A

24C
90-77

Se
e 52

5
113

1

12
5

4

3
2

1

17
PB 1-98

PB 1-181

1

24A
86-3323

7
191-470

25
24B

87-425

77-389

27C
527-875

24F
166-164

643

LANE

ROAD

LANE
BEAGLE

D
R

IV
E
SUNCREST

1381 1
6

21

415

1481

14

1
1

5
0

1
2

2
5 1
2

5
3 1

2
9

3 1
3

3
5 1

3
8

7 1431

1461 1484
1424

1374
1

3
4

4

255

383

449

1
2

2
0

W

SUP 11:05 - Central Virginia Electric Cooperative major utility

SCALE 1 : 4,301

0200 200 400 600
FEET

N

ATTACHMENT B

27



New Warehouse 

Building

New 

Compressor 

Building

Switch Gear and PCR 

Building

Existing 

Buried Piping

Reserve Space

New Office 

Building

Reserve Space

Substation 

Location 

(Approximate)
Exit/Entrance to 

main road N

ATTACHMENT C

28



Memorandum 
 
DATE:  January 4, 2012 
 
RE:  APO’S for SUP 11:05 Public Hearing Letters 
 
TO:  Darren Coffey 
 
FROM: Lauren Ryalls 
 
 
Please be advised the attached letter went out to the attached list of Adjacent Property 
Owners for the January 18, 2012 Board of Supervisors meeting.  

ATTACHMENT D

29



 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 
January 4, 2012 
 
«Title» «First_Name» «Last_Name» 
«Company_Name» 
«Address_Line_1» 
«City», «State» «ZIP_Code» 
TMP# «TMP» 
 
Re: Public Hearing on SUP 11:05 
 
Dear «Title» «Last_Name»«Company_Name»: 
 
This letter is to notify you that the Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors will hold a public 
hearing on the above referenced item on Wednesday, January 18, 2012 at 7:00 PM in 
the Circuit Court Room at the Fluvanna County Courts Building in Palmyra, VA.  The request is 
described as follows: 
 
SUP 11:05 – Central Virginia Electric Cooperative – A request for a special use permit to install 
electric facilities related to a major utility with respect to 62.8 acres of Tax Map 26, Section A, 
Parcels 22, 23, and 24F.  The applicant is proposing to construct, operate, and maintain electric 
transmission and substation facilities to serve the Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Company’s 
natural gas pump station.  The property is currently zoned A-1 and I-1 and is located on Transco 
Road (Route 643), approximately ½ mile west of Rolling Road South (Route 620).  The property is 
located in the Cunningham Election District and is within the Rural Preservation Planning Area. 
 
The applicant or applicant’s representative must be present at the Board of Supervisors meeting.  
The tentative agenda and staff report will also be available for review by the public in the 
Fluvanna County Planning and Community Development Department during working hours 
(8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday).  If you have any questions, please feel free to 
contact me at 434–591–1910. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Steve Tugwell 
Senior Planner 

P.O. Box 540 Palmyra, VA 22963 (434) 591-1910 FAX (434) 591-1911 www.co.fluvanna.va.us 
“Responsive & Responsible Government” 

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA  
 

30



31



32



33



       
November 9, 2011 Neighborhood meeting for SUP 11:05 (CVEC, Tax Map 26-A-22, 
23, 24F) 
 
Four neighbors were in attendance in regard to this application, and their main 
concern appeared to be with the potential level of noise from the facility. 
 
 
 How is gas being directed now?  Applicant responded that the gas will be 

disconnected to the site during the construction phase. 
 
 
 The facility is loud at times. 
 
 
 When will construction begin?  The applicant responded that they hoped to begin 

construction around January 2012. 
 
 

 Where is the dominion substation? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

34



ATTACHMENT E

35



36



    

  
  
  

  
  
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

To: Fluvanna County Board of Supervisors      From: Andrew Pompei 
Case Number: SUP 11:06      District: Fork Union 
Tax Map: 52(1)7       Date: January 18, 2012 
 
General Information:             This request is to be heard by the Board of Supervisors on 

Wednesday, January 18, 2011 at 7:00 pm in the Circuit Courtroom 
of the Courts Building.  

 
Applicant:              Central States Tower II, LLC 
 
Requested Action:  A request for a special use permit to amend SUP 07:15 to allow for 

an increase in height from 125 feet to 195 feet for a wireless 
communications tower with respect to 29.389 acres of Tax Map 
52, Section 1, Parcel 7. (Attachment A) 

  
Existing Zoning:  A-1, Agricultural, General 
 
Planning Area:  Rural Residential  
 
Zoning Ordinance:  Section 22-27-1 
 
Location: The affected property is located at 7021 James Madison Highway, 

on the west side of U.S. Route 15 (James Madison Highway) north 
of its intersection with State Route 6 (East River Road). 
(Attachment B) 

 
Existing Land Use:  Heavily Forested; Single-Family Dwelling on Subject Property 
 
Adjacent Land Use:  The surrounding area is largely low-density residential intermixed 

with limited commercial uses.  
 
Zoning History:  SUP 07:15  Special Use Permit for a 125’ Telecommunications 

Tower (Approved February 2008) 
   SDP 07:23  Site Plan for a 125’ Telecommunications Tower 

(Sketch Plan Approved February 2008) 
 

COUNTY OF  F LUVANNA 
“ Responsive & Responsible Government”  

  

P.O. Box 540 Palmyra, VA 22963 (434) 591-1910 FAX (434) 591-1911 www.co.fluvanna.va.us 

1



Analysis 
 
The applicant has requested to amend an existing special use permit (SUP 07:15) to allow the 
construction of a 195-foot monopole-type telecommunications tower on Tax Map 52, Section 1, 
Parcel 7; the existing special use permit allows a 125-foot tower to be constructed on the site, 
which was the maximum height permitted for telecommunications towers prior to adoption of the 
telecommunications facilities ordinance. The tower will be constructed within a 10,000 square 
foot (100’ x 100’) compound that will also house the necessary accessory structures.  
 
When evaluating proposed uses for special use permits, staff utilizes two (2) general guidelines 
for evaluation as set forth in the zoning ordinance (Sec. 22-17-4D).  
 
First, the proposed use should not tend to change the character and established pattern of the 
area or community. 
 
The proposed tower is located near the crossroads at Dixie, where U.S. Route 15 (James Madison 
Highway) and State Route 6 (East River Road) meet.  The surrounding area is largely low-
density residential intermixed with limited commercial uses.  
 
The proposed tower would be visible from both U.S. Route 15 and State Route 6 (Attachment 
C). When reviewing this request, the visual impacts to State Route 6, a designated Virginia 
Byway, should be considered. According to the Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT), 
roads may be designated as Virginia Byways if they meet the following criteria: 

• The route provides important scenic values and experiences; 

• There is a diversity of experiences, as in transition from one landscape scene to another; 

• The route links together or provides access to scenic, historic, recreational, cultural, 
natural and archeological elements;  

• The route bypasses major roads or provides opportunities to leave high-speed routes for 
variety and leisure in motoring. Landscape control or management along the route is 
feasible; 

• The route allows for additional features that will enhance the motorist’s experience and 
improve safety; and 

• The local government has initiated zoning or other land-use controls, so as to reasonably 
protect the aesthetic and cultural value of the highway. 

The tower will be located in a heavily-wooded area; mature vegetation will provide significant 
screening from U.S. Route 15, State Route 6, and adjacent properties. Based on the balloon test, 
the tower will be intermittently visible to motorists using those highways, but it may not 
significantly detract from the area’s rural character. 
 
According to the Wireless Telecommunications Facilities Master Plan, there are no existing 
towers in the area (Attachment D). The closest existing tower is located at Fluvanna Middle 
School, about two miles to the north. The maps provided by the applicant show that the area 

2



    

around the proposed tower has very limited cellular coverage (Attachment A: Exhibit 9). At best, 
most cellular users in the Dixie area are only able to receive on-street coverage.  
 
The Wireless Telecommunications Facilities Master Plan does not designate this site as a 
proposed emergency service location (Attachment E); however, the Planning Commission 
recommended that the County retain the right of first refusal before any subsequent co-location 
requests are approved.  
 
Second, the proposed use should be compatible with the uses permitted by-right in that zoning 
district and shall not adversely affect the use/or value of neighboring property.  
 
The subject property and surrounding parcels are all zoned A-1 (Agricultural, General). The A-1 
zoning district is intended to accommodate limited residential development, as well as small-
scale commercial and industrial uses that are directly related to agriculture, forestry, and other 
traditionally rural uses. Non-concealed freestanding telecommunications structures require a 
special use permit within A-1 districts.  
 
Dense vegetation surrounds the proposed location of the tower compound, effectively screening 
it from adjacent parcels. Per the sketch plan, evergreen trees (Virginia Pine) will be planted 
around the enclosure, providing additional screening. This screening will help mitigate any 
adverse impacts on neighboring properties. The applicant has submitted a waiver asking for an 
exception from the requirements set forth in Sec. 22-23-6 (P), which requires that submitted site 
plans show trees that are to be retained, removed, and planted. Staff does not believe this waiver 
should be granted, since the subject parcel is along the heavily-traveled Route 15 corridor; staff 
wants to ensure that the existing vegetation remains in place throughout the life of the project, 
even if ownership of the property changes. 
 
The proposed tower will be far from any existing residences. According to documentation 
submitted by the applicant, the nearest dwelling is 505 feet away. The proposed tower is located 
131 feet from the nearest property line. This distance will minimize any impacts the structure 
could have on area residents. 
 
If this request were approved, the applicant will be required to submit a site development plan for 
review and approval (Attachment A: Exhibit 10). 
 
Comprehensive Plan     
 
According to the Comprehensive Plan, the subject property is designated for rural residential 
uses. Rural residential areas are intended to retain their rural character, with limited residential 
development permitted in clusters that maximize the amount of open space preserved. Generally, 
residential densities may be up to one unit per two acres.  
 
The Infrastructure chapter of the Comprehensive Plan includes several recommendations 
regarding the siting and design of telecommunications facilities (page 110): 
 

• Minimize the impacts of wireless communications facilities on surrounding areas; 

3



• Encourage the location and co-location of wireless communication equipment on existing 
structures; 

• Accommodate the growing need and demand for wireless communication services; 

• Encourage coordination between communication providers; 

• Establish consistent and balanced legal language governing wireless communications 
facilities that take into consideration the Comprehensive Plan and communications 
master plan; and 

• Maintain compliance with applicable laws, including but not limited to the 1996 
Telecommunications Act. 

 
The above recommendations are the primary reasons the county has procured a       
telecommunications consultant to assist with the review of these applications. 
 
Neighborhood Meeting 
 
The neighborhood meeting was held on November 9, 2011. There were no attendees present in 
regard to this item.   
 
Technical Review Committee 
 
The Technical Review Committee (TRC) meeting was held on November 10, 2011.  
 
The Virginia Department of Transportation (VDOT) stated that the contractor must repair any 
damage to the existing site entrance on U.S. Route 15, including damage to the underlying 
drainage pipe.  
 
The full list of TRC comments is attached to this staff report (Attachment F). 
 
Planning Commission 
 
The Planning Commission considered this request at their regular meeting on December 28, 
2011. No citizens spoke at the public hearing. The Planning Commission recommended 
approval with a vote of 4-0-1 (Halstead absent, Babbitt abstained) with an amendment to 
condition 11. To address the concerns of the Planning Commission, condition 11 was amended 
to give Fluvanna County first right of refusal to locate on the tower prior to the approval of any 
co-location by a private company.  

 
Consultant’s Recommendation 
 
CityScape Consultants, Inc. has reviewed this request and has found that the proposed increase in 
height effectively doubles the previous service area (Attachment G). A greater number of carriers 
would be able to locate on the tower, reducing the need for additional telecommunications 
facilities in the area.  
 

4



    

In addition to the conditions approved as part of the original special use permit (SUP 07:15) 
Cityscape Consultants recommends approval of this application with the conditions listed below: 

1. The Applicant secures all necessary permits required;  

2. Prior to issuance of building permits the Applicant shall submit to the County satisfactory 
SHPO and NEPA documentation; 

3. All feed lines shall be installed within the shell of the monopole and no lines will be 
exposed except at the antennas;  

4. The support structure is to be sufficient to support antennas of a like design for five (5) 
additional wireless service providers, or a total of six (6) wireless service providers along 
with the County’s first right of refusal for tower space of equal proportion to the size and 
weight as the wireless carriers; 

5. The Applicant provide completed balloon tests; 

6. The Applicant shall install landscaping and buffering as shown on our figure 8 
(Landscaping and Buffer Plan); 

7. In Section 22-24 of the Fluvanna County ordinance there is a requirement the Applicant is 
required to produce a type of tree map. Within the narrative the Applicant states they have 
not fully complied. If the applicant wishes to not fulfill this requirement they should 
request a waiver; and 

8. The facility when completed shall be accessible only to authorized personnel.  

 
Conclusion 
 
This request appears to be in conformance with the intent of the Comprehensive Plan and the 
Wireless Telecommunications Facilities Master Plan. The proposed amendment to an existing 
special use permit will significantly improve cellular coverage along two of the County’s major 
transportation corridors. The tower’s location amongst existing vegetation helps reduce its visual 
impact on the surrounding area.  
 
If approved, staff recommends that the following conditions be imposed (Seven of the conditions 
are from SUP 07:15 and seven conditions are additional provisions associated with the proposed 
SUP amendment): 

1. The tower, including antennae, will not be higher than 125 199 ft. and will not be lit;  

2. The applicant must secure all required approvals from the building official and VDOT;  

3. Fluvanna County shall have a right of first refusal to use space on the tower for 
emergency communications purposes with weight and space specifications equal to or 
less than those of the applicant’s equipment as specified in this SUP application and its 
supporting documents so long as the tower exists and sufficient space and structural 
capacity remain on the tower without the addition of extensions or structural 
modifications. The right of first refusal must be exercised by the County by written notice 
within thirty (30) days following written notice from the applicant (or successor owner of 
the tower) of a potential third party’s desire to co-locate on the tower. If the County 

5



exercises its right to co-locate on the tower within such thirty-day period, space on the 
tower, as defined above, shall be provided to the County on a rent-free basis for use by 
the County police, fire, rescue, and/or other emergency communication services. In 
addition, under the same terms, the applicant will make available to Fluvanna County 
space near the base of the tower, not to exceed ten feet by ten feet (10’x10’) the 
applicant’s lease area, on a rent-free basis, for an equipment shelter or outdoor cabinet(s) 
for transmitting and receiving equipment relating to the County’s antennas on the tower. 
The County’s rights of first refusal (for tower and ground space) as described in this 
paragraph shall be subject to the requirements the County shall complete and submit a 
written application to the tower owner providing complete information regarding the 
antennas and facilities it desires to locate on the tower and on the ground and that the 
tower owner and County shall enter into a written lease agreement for the County’s use of 
such space prior to the County’s actual use thereof or the commencement of any 
installation work by the County. If the County does not exercise its right to co-locate 
within thirty days of its receipt of written notice from the applicant of a third party’s 
desire to co-locate on the tower, then the right of first refusal shall expire only as to the 
location(s) desired by said third party co-locator unless said location is the last available 
space for co-location on the tower, in which case the right of first refusal shall expire 
entirely in accordance with the following sentence. The County’s right of first refusal as 
to the tower shall expire, and this condition to the Special Use Permit shall be null and 
void upon the earlier to occur of the tower’s being removed or having no additional space 
for co-location or structural capacity. All notices required by this paragraph shall be in 
writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if hand-delivered, or mailed first-
class, postage prepaid, by certified mail, return receipt requested, or by overnight delivery 
with proof of delivery. 

 
3. The tower shall be in the same location as shown in the application;  

4. The Applicant shall secure all necessary permits required;  

5. Prior to issuance of building permits the Applicant shall submit to the County satisfactory 
SHPO and NEPA documentation; 

6. The Applicant shall submit a landscape plan as required by Article 24 (Tree Protection) 
of the Fluvanna County Zoning Ordinance;  

7. The Applicant shall provide completed balloon tests; 

8. The tower shall be a monopole and shall be engineered to collapse within the leased area 
with breakpoint technology;  

9. All feed lines shall be installed within the shell of the monopole and no lines will be 
exposed except at the antennas;  

10. If the structures should no longer be needed, the applicant shall remove them, and restore 
the grounds to the prior condition;  

11. The tower shall be available for co-location by other telecommunication companies, with 
Fluvanna County having the first right of refusal prior to the approval of each 
proposed co-location;  

6



    

12. The support structure is to be sufficient to support antennas of a like design for five (5) 
additional wireless service providers, or a total of six (6) wireless service providers; 

13. The facility when completed shall be accessible only to authorized personnel; and  

14. Violation of any condition of this permit shall be grounds for revocation of this permit.  

Condition 11 has been modified to address the concerns of the Planning Commission.  

 

Suggested Motion 
 
I move that the Board of Supervisors approve/deny SUP 11:06, a special use permit request to 
allow for a 195 foot monopole telecommunications tower pursuant to Fluvanna County Code 
Section 22-27-1 with respect to 29.389 acres of Tax Map 52, Section 1, Parcel 7 (if approved) 
subject to the conditions listed in the staff report. 
  
Attachments 
 
A: Application Package 
B: Aerial Vicinity Map 
C: Applicant’s Balloon Test Photos 
D: Map of Existing Wireless Telecommunications Inventory  
E: Map of Public Safety Tower Sites  
F: Technical Review Committee (TRC) Comments  
G: Consultant’s Report 
 
Copy 
Owner:   Larry & Nan Cagle, 7021 James Madison Highway, Fork Union, VA 23055 
Applicant:  Central States Tower, II LLC, 323 S. Hale Street, Ste. 100, Wheaton, IL 60187 
Representative: David Larsen, Talon Solutions & Services, 415 Munson Avenue, Ste. 102, Traverse City, MI 

49686 
Consultant: CityScape Consultants, 10704 Elmbrook Court, Raleigh, NC 27614 
 

7







































































































































































































































































































LONG-RANGE PLANNING SCHEDULE 
Department of Planning & Community Development 

2012 
 

Project Research/Preparation Work Sessions/Draft 
Revisions 

Planning Commission 
Public Hearing 

Amend Parking and 
Landscaping Sections of 

the Zoning Ordinance 
January - February January – March April 

Review of the Sign 
Ordinance February - March March April 

Amend A-1 zoning 
district, create new rural 

zoning district 
Complete May June 

Cash Proffers  May – June June July 

TDR/PDR 
(To be discussed with rural zoning 
issues, however, to develop specific 
program policies will take 
additional research and discussion) 

June - August August - September October 

Review of Conservation 
Easements Program October - November November December 

 

1



Radio Communications 
Narrow Banding Update

January 18, 2012



Narrow Banding Objectives

 Change Frequency Bands from 25 
MHz (wide band) width to 12.5 MHz 
width (narrow band)

 Make all necessary changes by 
regulatory deadline of January 1, 
2013



Narrow Banding Steps

1. Modify the current licenses to reflect the 
change in the band widths

2. Purchase mobile and portable radios along 
with pagers to replace equipment that is 
not compatible with narrow banding

3. Reprogram all existing and new radios
4. Switch over the E-911 base equipment to 

narrow band



Replacement Equipment

 Use the state contract for purchase of 
replacement equipment

 Purchase equipment that will be 
capable of making the move to a 
digital radio system and will have 
capabilities of future requirements 
such as encryption and “man-down” 
capabilities



Mobile Radio (Astro XTL 2500)



Portable Radio (XTS 2500)



Pager (Minitor V)



Equipment to be Replaced

 Mobile (Vehicle) – 56 units - $120,400
 Installation Costs - Add another $28,000

 Portable (Walkies) – 73 units - $131,400
 Pagers – 58 - $29,000

 Total Estimated Costs - $308,800



Reprogramming of Radios

 Communications Director has 
obtained a cost on this work from 
three firms:
 Clear Communications - $23,808
 Amerizon Wireless - $26,903
 Commtronics of Va - $27,360

 This will include all radios in the field 
as well as the E-911 base system



Interoperability
 The switchover of Fluvanna County E-911 

will be done when the system is completed
 However, the timing of the switchover of 

the surrounding Counties will be completed 
at different times out of the control of the 
Fluvanna

 Therefore, in order for the Fluvanna County 
radios to be able to communicate with the 
Surrounding Counties, the cost of additional 
reprogramming will be anticipated (but 
hopefully not needed)

 This added cost is estimated to be $12,000



Narrow Banding Costs

 License Modification - $4000
 Equipment - $308,800
 Reprogramming - $23,808
 Interoperability Reprogramming - $12,000
 Project Contingency (10%+/-) - $35,000

 Total Project Estimate - $383,608



Narrow banding Schedule

 License Modification
 Start – now
 Finish – when FC is complete; but it is reported to be 6 months 

or about August 1st

 Purchase of Equipment
 Start when final quote is returned to Board by the February 

15th meeting
 Equipment to be received within 55 days (business) of order so 

no later than May 2nd

 Reprogramming
 Start within 60 days of receipt of license or October 1st

 Complete within 30 days or November 1st



















































 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: Board of Supervisors  

FROM: Renee Hoover, Finance Director  

SUBJECT: Contingency Balance 

DATE: January 12, 2012 

 

The balances for the BOS and grant contingency lines for FY12 are as follows: 

 

Board of Supervisors Contingency: $100,000.00 

      Minus Donation to Town of Columbia 8.3.11       3,000.00 

 Minus Reimbursement of Livestock Claims 9.7.11 2,540.00 

 Minus Legal Services from Lawsuit 10.19.11 5,598.45 

 Minus Create Economic Development Director 10.19.11 54,000.00 

 Minus Erosion and Sediment Control Plan 11.2.11 7,800.00 

 Minus Legal Services from Lawsuit 11.16.11 2,923.70 

 Minus Legal Services from Lawsuit 12.7.11 11,928.91 

 Minus Facilities Work at the SPCA 12.7.11 10,000.00 

Minus Award to Rothamel 12.21.11 2,208.94 

Add Previously Approved Eckert Seamans 12.21.11 21,987.53 

Minus Impact Study for Water Line TJPDC 4,000.00  

Total Board of Supervisors Contingency  $ 17,987.53 

 

COUNTY OF FLUVANNA  

“Responsive & Responsible Government” 

P.O. Box 540, Palmyra, VA 22963  · (434) 591-1910  ·  FAX (434) 591-1911  · www.co.fluvanna.va.us 


	Agenda January 18, 2012 BOS Mtg.
	S - Minutes January 4, 2012 BOS Mtg.
	T - SUP 11:05 Central Virginia Electric Cooperative
	U - SUP 11:06 Central States Tower II, LLC
	V - Long-Range Planning Schedule
	W - Radio Communications Narrow Banding Update
	X - Code of Ethics
	YZ - Hiring of County Administrator
	Contingency Memo



